
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

28 May 2019 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 6 June 2019 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN  
 

 To note that the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Panel for the 2019/20 
Municipal Year will be appointed at the Cabinet meeting on 4 June 2019. 
 

2.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

3.   APOLOGIES  
 

4.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2019 
(previously circulated).  
 

Public Document Pack



5.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 
11  
 

6.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   PARKING SERVICES WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
on a revised parking services work programme for 2019-2021. 
 

9.   INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, 
HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY (Pages 13 - 28) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on the implementation of proposed waiting restrictions. 
 

10.   INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING 
SCHEME IN VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE, EAST AND SOUTH 
WEST WARDS, HATFIELD (Pages 29 - 74) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
on the creation of a traffic regulation order. 
 

11.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

12.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 13 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

 
 
 
 



PART II 
 

13.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman) 

S.Kasumu 
A.Chesterman 
B.Fitzsimon 
G.Hayes 
T.Kingsbury 
 

J.Quinton 
D.Richardson 
A Rohale 
P.Shah 
P.Zukowskyj 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Main author: Vikki Hatfield 
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 6 JUNE 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

PARKING SERVICES WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

1 Executive Summary 

Parking Services Resource 

1.1 In July 2018, following recommendation from CPPP, Cabinet approved an 
additional officer resource for a fixed two year contract to be appointed to the 
Parking Services team. This officer role was to carry out consultations with 
residents and businesses, which were on the approved Council’s Parking 
Services Work Programme. Initially, the post was successfully filled for 6 months, 
however the post become vacant in February and although the vacancy has 
been advertised on two occasions, the Council has not succeeded in employing 
a person to the position. 

1.2 Additionally, another two year fixed term position in Parking Team became 
vacant in April 2019, and one of the Senior Parking Technician posts has more 
recently become vacant. Every endeavour is being made to promptly fill the 
vacancies. 

Work Programme Review  

1.3 The Parking Services Work Programme was approved in July 2018 and took into 
consideration the number of large projects on the work programme; was 
programmed until March 2020. The current vacancies in Parking Team are likely 
to have a consequence on the projects within the work programme.  

Parking Improvements 

1.4 Off street parking improvements are carried out in areas of the borough, which 
are on the parking work programme, in tandem with the consultation with 
residents and businesses on parking restrictions. As these parking bays can be 
carried out on public highway and/or council land they require different approval 
processes, which need to be followed before any parking changes are 
implemented. In nearly all instances, residents are supportive of the parking bay 
improvements the council make, as this creates additional parking provision in 
their residential areas. However, on rarer occasions, residents in some locations 
may feel that the Council is removing parking provision. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel recommend to approve to Cabinet the revised Parking Services 
Work Programme 2019-2021, as outlined in Appendix A.  This is based on the 
resource level set out in section 3.1 of the report. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



2 

 

2.2 That the Panel note the approval process for Parking Improvements which are 
carried out by the Council, outlined in 3.4 - 3.8. 

3 Explanation 

Parking Services Resource 

3.1 Currently we have three vacancies in the Parking Services team. There is one 
two year fixed term vacancy and an 18 month fixed term vacancy. The Council 
has advertised the 18 month vacancy on two occasions and have not been 
successful in filling the post. It is thought that people are not prepared to leave a 
full time position with only a guarantee of 18 months to 2 years employment. The 
Council are proposing to merge the two fixed term vacancies to provide one 3.5 
year fixed term contract, it is hoped this will be a more attractive employment 
opportunity. 

Work Programme Review  

3.2 Due to the three vacancies the work programme will need to be reflect the 
reduced resource.  

3.3 See Appendix A for current status of the work programme and the proposed 
changes. As you will see Salisbury Village is currently on the work programme 
for junction protection only. However, a large amount of roads are likely to be 
adopted in the next 12 months, which will mean the restrictions managed 
privately, using Contract Law, will no longer be enforceable when the roads are 
formally adopted. The roads currently have a resident parking permit scheme 
operating in this area which is close to the Hatfield Business Park and the 
University Campus, the removal of these restrictions would have a detrimental 
impact on these residents. 

Parking Improvements  

3.4 All Parking Improvements can be on either public highway, Council or on 
Housing land, dependent on which one will determine the approval process. All 
residents in the affected locations will be consulted on the proposals. 

3.5 Improvements proposed on the public highway or which have an impact on the 
public highway need to be approved by Herts County Council as the highway 
authority. , 

3.6 Improvements on Housing/Estate land need to be considered and approved by 
the relevant officers in one or more of the following Landscape and Ecology, 
Planning and Estates, before these are constructed.  

3.7 Constructions for both schemes on Public Highway or Council land are carried 
out by HCC approved contractor, Ringway. 

3.8 On rare occasions, residents may feel that the parking improvements are 
reducing parking; as they are currently parking in areas they shouldn’t such as 
pavements and verges.  In the event that if a parking improvement scheme is 
faced with significant objections, a report will be presented to CPPP meeting for 
discussion. 

  

Page 6



3 

 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through 
existing Parking Services revenue budgets. 

5.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and 
carry out the appropriate remedial action. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 A risk assessment has not been prepared in relation to the proposals in this 
report as there are no new significant risks inherent in the report. 

6.2 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
some negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads.  

6.3 The amount of yellow lining and parking control within the borough continues to 
increase, and this increase may in due course require additional budget to 
ensure lining and signage is appropriate for enforcement. 

6.4 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will 
investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial action. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

8 Human Resources 

8.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

9 Communication and Engagement 

9.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council.  

Page 7



4 

 

9.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

9.3 All formal objections received in response to a traffic regulation order are 
considered by the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel. The Panel’s 
recommendations are presented to Cabinet for consideration.  

10 Health and Wellbeing 

10.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report 

11 Procurement Implications 

11.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

12 Climate Change Implication(s) 

12.1 There are no known climate change implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

13  Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Help build a strong local economy – Revitalise our town centres and other 
shopping precincts and; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 
 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out.  The creation    
of Traffic Regulation Orders requires further statutory consultation.  An EIA will 
be completed during this process. 

Name of author Vikki Hatfield  
Title Parking and Cemetery Services Manager 
Date 21 May 2019 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Page 8



App
en

dix
 A

                         Revised Work Programme 2019-2021  
   
Area Project Timescales 
Welham Green Monitoring period Due to be 

completed 
November 2019 

Cuffley High Street, minor changes to the current restrictions  Scheme 
commences on the 
10th June 2019 

  Lambs Close permit scheme, changing from Parish 
administration to WHBC 

Anticipated to be 
completed 
November 2019 

  Monitoring period - project completed  Anticipated to be 
completed             
31 March 2020 

Hatfield Hatfield Central, East and part of West - Initial consultation has taken place with 
all businesses and residents in the whole area. 

Lemsford Road 
area 

Resident parking permit scheme and verge protection 
order  

Scheme 
commences on the 
17th June 

  Monitoring period Anticipated to be 
completed January 
2020 

French Horn 
Lane area 

Initial consultation has taken place with all businesses and residents in the whole 
area. 

  Area one and two - Resident parking permit scheme 
currently at the formal stage 

CPPP June for 
recommendation to 
Cabinet in July 

  Area three Beaconfield Road/Endyminion Road - 
Businesses have received consultation letters with 
proposals 

Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in July 2019 

  Area Four St Albans Road West - Businesses and 
residents have received consultation letters with proposals 

Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in 
August/September 
2019 

  Area Five School Lane - Discussions to take place with the 
school to see what changes they would like to see 

Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in 
August/September 
2019 

  Verge Protection Order Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in December 
2019 

  Monitoring period  Six months after 
the last scheme 
commences 

Aldykes area Initial consultation has taken place with all businesses and residents in the whole 
area. 

  Due to the size of this area, three new resident parking 
permit schemes are proposed and verge protection order  

Formal stage due 
to start June 2019 

Page 9



App
en

dix
 A

  Monitoring period Six months after 
the last scheme 
commences 
 

Handside Initial consultation has taken place with all residents and businesses in the whole 
area. 
 

  Lemsford Road and Stanborough Green - Junction 
protection  

CPPP June for 
recommendation to 
Cabinet in July 

  Applecroft Road and junction with Handside Lane - mixture 
of single and double yellow lines  

Formal stage due 
to start July 2019 
 

  Guessens Road area - Residents parking permit scheme Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in 
August/September 
2019 

  Marsden Road area - Resident parking permit scheme Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in 
September/October 
2019 

  Junction protection in the form of double yellow lines in the 
remaining areas who are not requesting further restrictions 

Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in 
October/November 
2019 

  Verge Protection Order  Anticipate the 
formal stage to 
start in December 
2019 

  Monitoring period  Six months after 
the last scheme 
commences 

Amendments Amendment of A09 and A10 - Creation of new parking 
bays in Birdcroft Road and conversion of permit bays in 
Parkway to shared use. Each required to facilitate parking 
for new surgery 

Anticipated the 
formal stage to 
start in January 
2019 
 

  Amendment of A03 – Construction of new parking bays. 
Add to resident parking permit scheme and amend the 
Verge Protection Order 

Anticipated the 
formal stage to 
start in January 
2019 
 

Essendon Residents and businesses have been consulted , this 
scheme has reached the formal stage with proposals for 
junction protection and a Verge protection order  

Formal stage to 
start in August 
2019 
 

Hatfield town 
centre car parks 

Due to the proposal to build a Multi-storey car park in The 
Common, all restrictions will need to be amended in the 
town centre to ensure there is suitable shoppers parking 
close to the town centre as well as looking at how we can 
protect the long term parking provision for local workers 

Consultation to 
start with residents 
and businesses in 
July 2019 

Page 10



App
en

dix
 A

Salisbury 
Village 

In March 2019, the Council approved the inclusion of 
Salisbury Village on the Work Programme. This only 
extended to double yellow lines however, a large number 
of roads are due to be adopted this year which means the 
current restrictions which are managed by a private 
company will no longer be enforceable.   

To be added to the 
work programme, 
hope to start work 
in 2019. However 
this is dependent 
on the outcome of 
the above 
consultations  

Old Hatfield Residents have requested changes to the current 
restrictions. They are wanted the resident parking permit 
scheme to be extended to Saturdays and for some of the 
resident parking permits bays in the car park areas to be 
included within the same scheme. 

Consultation has 
yet to start with 
residents and 
businesses, not 
likely to start before 
2020-2021 

Peartree A number of challenges such as commuter parking and new 
developments such as the Wheat Quarter which may have 
further impact on residents.  

Consultation has 
yet to start with 
residents and 
businesses, not 
likely to start before 
2020-2021 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Main author: Jack Carson 
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton 
Handside 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 6 JUNE 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE 
WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report primarily concerns two separate locations, the area of Lemsford Lane 
directly outside Stanborough School and Stanborough Close, a small residential 
cul de-sac. 

1.2 Lemsford Lane – a number of residents living opposite Stanborough School have 
complained of congestion and unnecessary obstruction. They maintain this 
occurs not only at school drop off/pick up time but also out of hours, particularly 
at weekends when the school is hosting sporting activities.  

1.3 Stanborough Close – elderly and less mobile residents living at the top end of the 
cul-de-sac, have reported difficulties in manoeuvring in and out of their parking 
bay due to the close proximity of vehicles parked opposite.  

1.4 This report sets out the findings of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. Approximately 100 
properties and businesses have been consulted.  This report also outlines a 
modification notice (Appendix B) the Council served upon residents and the 
objections which were received in response to the advertised Orders. 

1.5 Two objections have been received relating to the proposed waiting restrictions. 
One pertaining to Lemsford Lane and the other from Stanborough Close; please 
see Appendix A. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 4.1 and 4.3; and in addition 
the issues raised in Section 15 around equalities and diversity. Having 
considered all the detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating 
actions; the Panel recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the implementation of 
the proposed waiting restrictions (Appendix C), for the reasons set out in this 
report. 

3 Explanation  

3.1 Lemsford Lane – A number of residents living opposite Stanborough School have 
requested double yellow lines to replace the existing single yellow line Monday to 
Friday restriction. They cite the fact that many of the participants for the Saturday 
sports activities, park on each side of the road, at times blocking their driveways 
and also making it difficult for the through passage of buses. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

3.2 A meeting with Stanborough School, local councillors, residents and Council 
Officers took place, and it was agreed that an investigation into the possible 
construction of a lay-by on the school side of the road be undertaken. Council 
officers from Landscape & Ecology subsequently recommended refusal of the 
planned parking improvements as it would necessitate the removal of several 
mature trees. 

3.3 Following the publication of the Notice in the Welwyn Hatfield Times on 3rd April 
2019 (see 3.4 below), further representations were submitted by residents 
requesting an additional length of double yellow lines on the school side of the 
road in lieu of the fact that a lay-by was no longer an option. 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 

3.4 On the 3rd April 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Welwyn Garden City) (Restriction of Waiting) 
Order 2019” (See Appendix B) was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 
Notices were also erected in the lengths of roads affected and letters delivered to 
residents and businesses. 

3.5      On the 10th April 2019, The Council published a Modification Notice (Appendix 
B), advertising an additional length of double yellow lines. The letters were hand 
delivered to affected residents and notices erected in the locality. The draft traffic 
regulation order has now been amended to reflect this addition. 

4 Objections 

4.1 One objection has been received from a resident in Stanborough Close which 
can be summarised below: 

- There are approx. 6 spaces for seven council bungalows. If all these spaces 
are filled there will be nowhere for carers and visitors to park. 

4.2 Response to 4.1 

- The changes are essential to improve the access of disabled users. 

- A letter was received from a further resident to say the Council had not gone 
far enough with their restrictions and that all of the top section in the turn- 
around area should be subject to yellow lines. 

- Double yellow line (junction protection) is also proposed for the corner with 
Stanborough Road. Parking Services have agreed to shorten these lengths at 
the request of a resident. 

4.3 One objection has been received from a resident in Lemsford Lane which can be 
summarised below: 

-  We require on-street parking to accommodate differing family parking 
requirements. 

  

Page 14



3 

 

4.4 Responses to 4.3 

- Parking Services will agree to omit a section of double yellow lines from 
outside this property. The resident is fully aware that they cannot reserve this 
area for their own use. 

5 Legal Implication(s) 

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

6 Financial Implication(s) 

6.1 The cost of the TRO recommended in this report will be funded through existing 
Parking Services revenue. 

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads.  

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will 
investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial action. 

8 Security & Terrorism Implications 

8.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

9 Human Resources 

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

10 Communication and Engagement 

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council. 

10.2 The Modification Notice (Appendix B) was published in accordance with 
Regulation 14 of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 

10.3 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

Page 15



4 

 

10.4 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing 

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report 

12 Procurement Implications 

12.1 There are no known procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

13 Climate Change Implication(s) 

13.1 There are no known climate change implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report. 

14 Link to Corporate Priorities 

14.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and Enhance the 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective Parking 
Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 
 

15 Equality and Diversity 

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  

15.2 The double yellow lines will prevent parking at the junctions; this may force 
drivers to park further away from their destination. However, the Council believes 
that the benefits provided by added road safety at the junctions and reducing 
vehicles parking obstructing public footway outweighs any dis-benefits 

15.3 There is a potential for a positive impact on Disability.  

15.4 During the monitoring period (7.2) should any unintended impacts come to light, 
Parking Services will where possible investigate and carryout the appropriate 
remedial action. 

Name of author Jack Carson 01707 357529 
Title Parking Services Technician 
Date 21st May 2019 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Page 16



We are writing to object to double yellow lines in Lemsford Lane for the following 
reasons: 

•         On the initial proposal in May, 14 properties out of the 91 requested a 
permit scheme, only 6 opted for yellow lines however a further 13 properties 
preferred the do nothing option, keep things as they are. This raises the 
question why yellow lines have been the option chosen. 
•         We require off street parking as there is not enough room for us to park 
in the evenings and weekends on the road and there will be nowhere down 
our road for visitors to park either.  
•         My husband leaves the house for work at 3.30am and if my daughter is 
not home by 8.30pm in the evening  she needs to have the facility to park on 
the road, or wake him up to move his car whatever time she gets home.  We 
are not in a position to make our drive larger. It would also involve requesting 
planning permission for the tree to be removed (if agreed) and the cost if 
agreed for the tree to be removed. 
•         The restrictions are being put in place partly due to a handful of 
residents who are disgruntled with netball events which happen at the 
weekends and rightly annoyed at  parents of pupils at the beginning and end 
of the school days blocking their drives – permit parking would solve this issue 
with the suitable restrictions in place.  These residents already have sufficient 
parking and will not need to buy permits, but would have the choice should 
they wish to. The proposed restrictions are also due to ‘Splashlands’ being 
built at Stanborough Park which will mean most visitors will need to park at 
the cark parks at the park and pay the parking charges. 

  
Possible outcomes I would like considered: 

•         Double yellow lines to be omitted from outside our property at our 
request, this is on the understanding that we are fully aware that this parking 
may be used by others. 
•         No double yellow lines. Permit parking giving residents the choice 
should they wish to have on street parking. (This is the case in many roads 
across Welwyn and Hatfield). 
 
Many Thanks 

 
 
 

Appendix A

Page 17



Appendix A

Page 18



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES’ TRAFFIC ORDERS (PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND AND 
WALES) REGULATIONS 1996 

 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY)  
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING) ORDER 2019 

 
 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council), as a consequence of 
responses received to the Notice of Intention published on 3rd April 2019, proposing 
to introduce No waiting at any time restrictions in Lemsford Lane, Welwyn Garden 
City under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; propose under provisions of 
Regulation 14 of The Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 to modify the above named draft Order. 
 
The effect of the modifications (as indicated on the attached plan) will be as follows: 
 

• The insertion of an additional length of double yellow lines, measuring 
approximately 69 metres in length, on the southwest kerbline of Lemsford 
Lane outside Stanborough School. 

• This will replace the existing single yellow line, No waiting, 8am-6pm, School 
days only 

 
 
Should you wish to make any representations regarding the proposed modifications 
please write to Parking Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE 
(01707 357000) – for the attention of Jack Carson;  or alternatively email; 
parking@welhat.gov.uk 
 
Representations concerning the proposed modifications should be submitted, so as 
to be received by the Borough Council within 14 days of this Notice 
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. 
Any personal data you provide in responding to this Notice will be treated as 
confidential, but will be shared with WHBC Officers; Borough Councillors and 
contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. Guidance on your 
rights in respect of personal data is published in the Privacy Policy on our website, 
welhat.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ka Ng, Executive Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
10th April 2019. 

Appendix B

Page 19

mailto:parking@welhat.gov.uk


 
 

 

Appendix B

Page 20



 

1 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 
 
 
 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING) ORDER 2019 

 
The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (herein referred to as “the Council”) pursuant to 
arrangements made with Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”) under Section 
19 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 in exercise of the powers conferred on 
the said County Council by Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
(which said Act of 1984 is hereinafter referred to as “the Act of 1984”), and Part IV of 
Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984 and of all other enabling powers and after consultation with 
the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984, 
hereby make the following the Order :- 
 

1. This Order may be cited as “The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, 
Welwyn Garden City) (Restriction of Waiting) Order 2019” and shall come into 
effect on <DATE> 

 
2. Save as provided in Articles 3, 4 and 5 of this Order, no person shall cause or permit 

any vehicle to wait at any time in those lengths of Stanborough Close, Stanborough 
Road, Lemsford Lane, Amethyst Walk and Sefton Court as specified in the Schedule 
to this Order. 

 
3. (1)  Nothing in Article 2 of this Order applies to the lengths of road restricted by that  

   Article (which said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as “the restricted 
               area”) in relation to – 
 
               (a) a vehicle being used for Fire and Rescue, Ambulance or Police purposes. 

 
   (b) anything done with the permission of or at the direction of a police constable in 

                      uniform: or with permission of a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the  
                      Traffic Management Act 2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough  
                      Council. 

 
   (c) a vehicle which is prevented from proceeding by circumstances beyond the  
          driver’s control or which has stopped in order to avoid injury or damage to  
          persons or property or when required to do so by law; 
 
 

              (d) a vehicle which is stationary in order that it may be used for one or more of the  
                     purposes specified in sub-Article (2) of this Article  and which cannot  
                     reasonably be used for such a purpose without stopping in the restricted area; 
 
 
              (e) a marked vehicle which, whilst used by a universal service provider in the  
                    course of the provision of a universal postal service, is stationary only for so     
                    long as may be reasonably necessary for postal packets to be delivered or  
                    collected; 

 

Appendix C

Page 21



 

2 
 

  In this Article –  
 
The expressions “universal service provider”, “provision of a universal postal 
Service” and “postal packet” shall bear the same meanings as in Section 65 of 
the Postal Services Act 2011. 

 
           (2) The purposes referred to in sub-Article (1)(d) of this Article are- 
 

(a) Any operation involving building, demolition or excavation; 
(b) The removal of any obstruction to traffic; 
(c) The maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of a road; 
(d) Constructing, improving, maintaining, or cleaning of any street furniture; or 
(e) The laying, erection, alteration, repair or cleaning of any sewer or of any main 

pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or electricity, or of any 
telecommunications apparatus kept or installed for the purposes of a 
telecommunications code system or of any other telecommunications 
apparatus lawfully kept installed in any position. 

 
4. Nothing in Article 2 of this Order applies to lengths of road restricted by that Article 

(which said lengths of road are referred to in this Article as “the restricted area”) so 
as to render it unlawful to cause or permit any vehicle to wait only for so long as may 
be reasonably necessary –  

 
(a) To enable goods to be loaded on or unloaded from the vehicle from or to premises 
      adjacent to the restricted area; or 
 

         (b) To enable a passenger to board or alight and to load and unload any luggage. 
 

5. (1) Nothing in Article 2 of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a 
     disabled person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled 
     person’s badge and a parking disc, to wait at any time in the lengths of road 

           specified in the Schedule of this Order for a period not exceeding 3 hours (not  
     being a period separated by an interval of less than 1 hour from a previous period  

           of waiting by the same vehicle in the same length of road). 
 

        (2) In this Article –  
 
  “disabled person’s vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 142 (1) of the  
  Act of 1984; 
 
  “disabled person’s badge” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 3(1) of The  
  Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)   
  Regulations 2000 
  “parking disc” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 8 (5) of The Local 
  Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England)  
  Regulations 2000; and  
 
  “relevant position” has the same meaning as given in Regulation 4 of The Local  
  Authorities Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled persons) (England) Regulations  
  2000. 

 
 

6. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it 
applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament. 

 

Appendix C

Page 22



 

3 
 

 
7. The provisions of the following Order are hereby revoked but only in so far as they 

are affected by the restrictions imposed by this Order 
 
The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (Control of Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017 
 

8. The restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to and not in derogation 
from any restriction or requirement imposed by any other regulations made or 
having effect as if made under the Act of 1984 or by or under any other enactment. 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
Lengths of Stanborough Road, Stanborough Close, Lemsford Lane, Amethyst Walk 

and Sefton Court, Welwyn Garden City – No waiting at any time 
 
 

Stanborough Road 
Northwest side 

a From a point in line with the projected southwest kerbline of 
Stanborough Close, southwest for a distance of 15 metres.  

 b From a point in line with the projected southeast kerbline of 
Stanborough Close, northeast for a distance of 15 metres. 

Stanborough Close 
Southwest side 

 From a point in line with the northwest property wall of No 3 
Stanborough Close, northwest and southwest for a distance of 
13 metres 

Stanborough Close 
Northeast side 

 From a point 5.5 metres northwest of a point in line with the 
common boundary between Nos 17 and 18 Stanborough 
Close, southeast, southwest, then southeast for an 
approximate distance of 24.5 metres 

Stanborough Close 
Northwest side 

 From a point in line with the common boundary between Nos 
12 and 13 Stanborough Close, northeast for a distance of 9 
metres. 

Stanborough Close 
Both sides 

 From a point in line with the projected northwest kerbline of 
Stanborough Road, northwest for a distance of 12.5 metres. 

Lemsford Lane 
Northeast side 

 From a point 6.5m northwest of a point in line with the 
southeast property boundary of No 134 Lemsford Lane, 
northwest for an approximate distance of 88 metres, to a point 
1.5 metres southeast of a point in line with the common 
boundary between Nos 118 and 120 Lemsford Lane. 

Lemsford Lane 
Southwest side 

a From a point 3.5 metres northwest of a point in line with the 
projected northwest kerbline of Stanborough Green, northwest 
for an approximate distance of 51 metres, to a point in line with 
the projected southeast kerbline of the access road to the 
school car park. 

 b From a point 1.5 metres southeast of a point in line with the 
common boundary between Nos 130 and 132 Lemsford Lane, 
northwest for an approximate distance of 69 metres, to a point 
4 metres northwest of a point in line with the common 
boundary between Nos 120 and 122 Lemsford Lane 

 c From a point 2.5 metres northwest of a point in line with the 
common boundary between Nos 104 and 108 Lemsford Lane, 
northwest for a distance of 9 metres. 

 d From a point 1.5 metres southeast of a point in line with the 
common boundary between Nos 102 and 104 Lemsford Lane, 
northwest for a distance of 21.5 metres, to a point in line with 
the projected southeast kerbline of Amethyst Walk 

Appendix C

Page 23



 

4 
 

 e From a point in line with the projected northwest kerbline of 
Amethyst Walk, northwest for a distance of 14.5 metres 

 f From a point 3.5 metres northwest of a point in line with the 
common boundary between No 96 Lemsford Lane and No 18 
Stacklands, northwest for an approximate distance of 32 
metres, to a point in line with the projected southeast kerbline 
of Sefton Court 

 g From a point in line with the projected northwest kerbline of 
Sefton Court, northwest for a distance of 20 metres 

Access road to WHBC 
Car Park  - Both sides 

 From a point in line with the projected southwest kerbline of 
Lemsford Lane, southwest for 7.5 metres. 

Access road to School 
Car Park – Southeast side 

 From a point in line with the projected southwest kerbline of 
Lemsford Lane, southeast for a distance of 6 metres. 

Amethyst Walk 
Southeast side 

 From a point in line with the projected  southwest kerbline of 
Lemsford Lane, southwest for a distance of 6.5 metres 

Amethyst Walk  
Northwest side 

 From a point in line with the projected southwest kerbline of 
Lemsford Lane, southwest for a distance of 7.5 metres 

Sefton Court 
Both sides 

 From a point in line with the projected southwest kerbline of 
Lemsford Lane, southwest for a distance of 7 metres 

 
 
 
 
 

GIVEN under the Common Seal of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council this 
<Xth> day of <MONTH> <YEAR> 

 

         THE COMMON SEAL of the WELWYN ) 
         HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL was  ) 
         Hereunto affixed in the presence of:-     ) 
 
 
 
 
         Mayor 
 
 
 
 
         Authorised Officer 

 
 

Appendix C

Page 24



Appendix C

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Main author: Martin Donohoe 
Executive Member: Stephen Boulton 
Hatfield East and Hatfield South West 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 6 JUNE 2019 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING 
SCHEME IN VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE, EAST AND SOUTH WEST 
WARDS, HATFIELD 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Within the next year work is due to start on the redevelopment of Hatfield Town 
Centre, including proposals to construct a new multi-storey car in The Common 
car park. The redevelopment is likely to cause a level of parking displacement 
during and after the construction of the new car park. Residents and businesses 
in the in the roads surrounding the town centre are being consulted now on 
parking restrictions to minimise the effect of any displacement. The consultation 
area of “French Horn Lane” initially covered 23 roads to the south and east of the 
town centre. The consultation area was later expanded to include Oaklands 
Wood and St Albans Road East. 

1.2 In January 2018 the Council sent out the first round of consultation letters setting 
out the scope of the consultation. Options in the survey form for new restrictions 
included double yellow lines (DYLs) and permit parking zones (PPZs). The letter 
included a proposal to create a Verge Protection Order (VPO) to prevent parking 
on grass verges and pavements. There was also an option to “Do nothing” to 
indicate that no changes were required. 

1.3 A VPO covers the limits of the public highway, extending from the centre of the 
road to the highway boundary, which in many cases is the boundary of the 
private property, this could include verges and/or pavement. Yellow line waiting 
restrictions also share the same boundary. 

1.4 Some roads returned low numbers of responses, less than 20%. These roads 
were given a second opportunity to respond in May 2018.  As a result of the 
responses the French Horn Lane area was split into four separate consultation 
areas for supplementary consultation and detailed parking designs. The rest of 
this report relates to just areas 1 and 2. 

1.5 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the statutory 
consultation and the recommended course of action. This report also outlines two 
modifications that were made during the formal consultation and the objections 
which were received in response to the advertised Order. 

1.6 Twelve objections have been received relating to the proposed parking 
restrictions, please see Appendix A. 
 

  

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



2 

 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received in 4.1 and in addition the issues 
raised in Section 15, around equalities and diversity. Having considered all the 
detailed issues in this report including any proposed mitigating actions; 
recommends to Cabinet to proceed with the creation of traffic regulation order 
(Appendix B) for the reasons set out in this report. 

3 Explanation  

3.1 Based on the responses from the first two survey letters sent to French Horn 
Lane Areas 1 - 4, the majority of respondents favoured a permit scheme to 
operate Monday to Friday between 8am to 6pm. 760 survey forms were sent out, 
192 responses were received.  
 
 

 

 

3.2 Areas 1 and 2 are located south of French Horn Lane and either side of Old 
Rectory Drive. They have similar parking issues. Being located close to the train 
station and within easy walking distance of the town centre, commuters and local 
workers compete with residents and visitors to the nearby school for parking 
spaces.  

3.3 Based on the results of the initial consultation in Area 1 and 2 a new proposal 
was created. The proposal would provide some “permit parking only” areas and 
some shared use bays that would allow permit holders to park all day or visitors 
to park for up to 2 hours. The overall effect of the proposed restrictions would be 
to remove all commuter parking. Businesses and other organisations located 
within Areas 1 and 2 would be entitled to buy permits for their staff. See plans in 
Appendix B   

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 

3.4 On the 20th March 2019 the public notice proposing “The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, French Horn Lane Area, Hatfield) (Restriction of 
Waiting, Parking Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2019” was 
advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also erected in the 
lengths of roads affected and letters delivered to residents and businesses. See 
Appendix B. 

3.5 In response to representations received after the publication of the notice, two 
Modification notices were made. Modification 1 added DYL restrictions in front of 
some garage blocks. Modification 2 changed the proposed restriction outside 
Glebe Court from “permit only parking” to “shared use parking” see Appendix C. 

3.6 Modification 1 was created to prevent parking displacement from the proposed 
PPZ obstructing the garage doors and access roads. No objections were made 
to the additional DYL restrictions. 

3.7 Modification 2 was created following objections to the PPZ from Glebe Court 
Sheltered Housing over concerns about the cost of visitor permits for carers, 

Type of restriction Restriction days Restriction times 

Do 
nothing 

Single 
Yellow 

Resident 
permits Mon-Fri Mon-Sat 9-11am 9am-5pm 8am-6pm 

60 39 105 70 45 34 22 63 

Page 30



3 

 

family and the possible effect on several activity groups using the hall. The 
modification will allow visitors to park free for “2 hours no return within 2 hours” 
Despite the concession made in the modification, the Glebe Court residents have 
not withdrawn their objections. 

4 Objections 

4.1 Twelve objection letters have been received in relation to the proposed waiting 
restrictions. The various types of objections are summarised below: 

a) There isn’t a parking problem in this road / the existing restrictions work.  

b) The problems are caused by the train station charging for parking.  

c) You have ignored my petition (six signatures).  

d) We already have signs ‘Resident Parking Only” put up by Housing 
Trust/Council/Association.  

e) We already have bays outside our houses, permits should be free for 
residents. 

f) We already pay council tax, rent and road tax so should not have to pay 
to park. The council is creating a permit scheme to make a profit via a 
stealth tax. 

g) Pensioners have a limited / low budget. Permits should be 
free/discounted for pensioner’s cars. Visitor permits should be free for 
pensioners.  

h) The list of fees was not attached to your last consultation letter. 

i) Family and carer’s provide emotional and physical support, parking 
restrictions may deter visitors.  

j) The majority of residents didn’t respond which tells us they did not see 
or read the letters you sent out / I was not consulted. The council is 
being underhanded / misleading. The result of the survey is not a true 
reflection of the residents’ feelings.  

k) The columns in your table do not add up. 192 responses were received 
but the first three columns add up to 204.  

l) Buying a permit does not guarantee me a parking space. 

m) I live in Hatfield, I drive to the train station and park my car on the road. 
Paying to park at the station will increase my travel costs. I live too far 
away to walk to the station. 

n) The proposed permit scheme will allow other residents to park in front 
of my driveway.  

o) The council should provide more parking spaces.  

p) How will tradesmen park? What about deliveries?  

Page 31



4 

 

4.2 Responses to 4.1 

a) The results of the consultation show that many residents have parking 
issues and they have voted to change the existing parking conditions.  

b) The council does not control the car park at the train station. The car 
park is being run as part of a business.  

c) The council received a small petition with six address and signatures for 
each address. The petition was not ignored, it was filed with the other 
responses to the consultation.  

d) Any existing “Resident Parking Only” signs are not enforceable and 
routinely ignored in other locations. 

e) Fees and charges are set by Council. These charges cover some of the 
cost of administration and if there is any surplus it contributes to part of 
the cost of enforcement. The fees and charges are not a tax, but help 
support the enforcement service to ensure effective parking control. The 
fees have remained unchanged since 2009. There is no discounted 
permit for pensioners’ personal vehicles but pensioners do get a 50% 
discount for visitor permits. 

f) See response to e) 

g) See response to e)  

h) The list of fees and charges was included in the first consultation letter 
along with the survey form and plans. The last letter sent was to notify 
residents that a public notice would be advertised in the paper and 
public notices erected in the roads affected. The notices in the paper 
and those erected on site contained the fees and charges. 

i) It is not the council’s intention to deter visitors. Residents may purchase 
visitor vouchers. Also a number of short stay parking spaces have been 
included in nearby roads visitor may park for up to 2 hours without 
charge. Unpaid carers/family carers may apply for a free permit. Paid 
carers and doctors may purchase a permit through their surgery. The 
majority of social family visits are likely to be late in the afternoon or at 
weekends when permits are not needed. 

j) The consultation letter and survey form was sent out to all addresses in 
the survey area. If a resident or business does not respond to a survey 
then it must be assumed they are willing to accept a parking scheme 
based on the views of others that do respond to the survey. 

k) The results shown in the table (see 3.1) are correct. Some respondents 
may tick more than one box. Some may not select any boxes or only 
partially complete the survey form. 

l) The Council is in no position to guarantee anyone a parking place. 
However, with the removal of the non-residential vehicles residents 
should be in a better position to find a parking space within a 
reasonable distance to their home. 

Page 32



5 

 

m) The proposed permit scheme is designed to encourage commuters to 
park in the station car park, or use alternative mode of transport to get 
to the train station. There are no permits for commuters. 

n) This is not true. Permit holders must not obstruct access to other 
resident’s driveways. 

o) The council are investigating the possibility of creating more parking 
spaces in the area. However, this is likely to be limited due to the lack of 
green areas and verges. Parking improvements are look at as part of 
the project and some locations may be better suited than others. Most 
services such as BT and Cable companies install the cabling in the 
verge which are incredibly expensive to lower to enable the construction 
of lay-bys to take place, also lamp columns and trees can affect 
whether a location is viable. 

p) Residents may purchase visitor permits on behalf of tradespersons. 
Permits can be administered online or arrangements can be made in 
advance for scratch card permits.  Delivery drivers do not need permits 
unless they have to leave their vehicle unattended. All vehicles will be 
observed for 2-3 minutes to see if loading/unloading activity is taken 
place, if the delivery is something more extensive such as removals 
then the delivery company can arrange for a dispensation with the 
Parking Office or the resident can provide a voucher to cover the 
vehicle for the day. If a ticket is issued then the delivery driver/company 
would need to provide evidence that they were delivering an item and 
the parking ticket would be cancelled. 

5 Legal Implication(s) 

5.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

6 Financial Implication(s) 

6.1 The cost of TRO and Parking Improvement works recommended in this report 
will be funded through existing Parking Services revenue and capital budgets. 

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and 
carry out the appropriate remedial action. 

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads.  

7.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 

Page 33



6 

 

discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services where possible will 
investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial action. 

8 Security & Terrorism Implications 

8.1 There are no known security & terrorism implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

9 Human Resources 

9.1 There are no known Human Resources implications in relation to the proposals 
in this report. 

10 Communication and Engagement 

10.1 When making any changes to parking restrictions there is a statutory consultation 
process set out in the Local Authority Traffic Orders (Procedures) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 which the Council needs to adhere to. This includes 
consulting directly with all affected parties and a number of statutory consultees, 
such as the Police and Hertfordshire County Council.  

10.2 In addition, Notices are required to be erected within all roads affected and 
advertised in the local newspaper, in this case the Welwyn Hatfield Times. 

10.3 This process has been carried out and there are no known implications in relation 
to the proposals in this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing 

11.1 There are no known Health and Wellbeing implications in relation to the 
proposals in this report 

12 Procurement Implications 

12.1 There are no known procurement implications in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

13 Climate Change Implication(s) 

13.1 There are no known climate change implications in relation to the proposals in 
this report. 

14 Link to Corporate Priorities 

14.1 This report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and Enhance the 
Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver Effective Parking 
Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 
 

 
  

Page 34



7 

 

15 Equality and Diversity 

15.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out.  

15.2 The EqIA found that there is potential for a positive and negative impacts on 
Disability and Age. Blue badge holders benefit from an exemption allowing them 
to park without a permit in resident permit parking schemes. There will be more 
parking space for visitors for all. There is a cost impact for both groups’ visitor 
permits are not free. Both pensioners and the disabled may have lower incomes 
with a need for more visitors. One modification was made to the proposal in 
favour of Glebe Court sheltered housing to reduce these impacts. 

Name of author Martin Donohoe 
Title Senior Parking Services Officer  
Date 23rd May 2019 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Page 37



Appendix A

Page 38



hi Mr Donohoe.just to let you know that i have been speaking to my neighbours and friends in 
Brain   they have all said the same thing.that we did not ask you to put these things into place . as we 
don't have problems in our street with people parking here .it is just something that you have done 
without looking into all the facts.none here knew that they would have to pay for parking outside 
their own home imposed my you.owe all pay for our cars to be on the roads IE. insurance,tax,and 
MOT. we also pay rent and council tax.for living here which is act. enough for everyone to have to 
pay without having to pay for something we have not asked off. you should have let everyone know 
that there is a fee to pay and for how much.we all feel that you have not been honest and truthful 
over this not everyone has INTERNET.and some cant even read .please look into this again very 
carefully. 
On 4/29/19 9:33 PM,  

   

 read this and have got a lot of concerns about it.  We have 2 signs at the beginning of 
Brain Close says residence parking on them with welwyn/Hatfield council on them and we 
don't have problems with parking outside my home. if this goes ahead then i think that we 
should all be given a free parking with 1 visitors free pass.we have a hall that is in use most 
days. i personal have 5 siblings 3 children and 6 grandchildren that will mean that they 
cannot come over to me. Also the rest of the people in here have family and friends that will 
not be able to come and help them with every day things and also their care providers that 
come in unto 4 times a day. these people would feel totality abandon and a recluse in their 
home. all activities in the hall are for anyone. 

1 Sunday lunch every month   

2 Monday brunch   

3 Tuesdays needlework and knitting and then we have music night every week 

4 Wednesday coffee morning and then we have the whisk club every week and also arts and 
crafts 

5 Thursday keep fit  

6 Friday whisk club every week 

these are open to anyone and has been so for many years 

also the people that live here are very old 80to 90 plus we have disabled people, blind person 
and most people are pensioners and need a car to go around .pay bills and shopping . i have 2 
sisters that are very ill 1 is disabled so i have to make sure that they are both alright shopping, 
Dr and hospital appointments and it would be a great hardship if this goes ahead so please 
rethink your plans before its to late 

 On 4/26/19 5:33 PM, parking wrote 

 

Appendix A

Page 39



Appendix A

Page 40



Appendix A

Page 41



From: cei@btinternet.com [
Sent: 26 March 2019 09:24
To: parking <parking@welhat.gov.uk>
Cc: 'Grant Shapps MP' <grant@shapps.com>
Subject: For the attention of Ka Ng Corporate Director Resources, Environment and Cultural Services Reference 
MD/12099

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or 
clicking links.
.
Dea Ka,
                        I am writing to you again concerning the parking scheme proposal to voice a few concerns.
It was in February 2018 that I first voiced these concerns and since then there has been no response only through our 
Member of Parliament’s office.
I shall try to lay out things chronologically and at the same time it will detail our serious concerns that not only will we 
all incur costs in return for nothing but the scheme will cause us problems that do not exist in our area.
We look forward to your response.

Subject: Stupid and Inconsiderate Parking Proposals for Hatfield Town Centre and Surrounding Roads.
Dear Grant,
                                I hope you are well and can help the residents of East Hatfield.
I am sure you know about this parking scheme produced by Ka Ng Executive Director, Resources Environment & 
Cultural Services. As a resident of 11 French Horn Lane I have been asked to review it, filling in a questionnaire giving 
our opinions on what should be done.
First of all, before I address the plan, as a car owner I feel it is just an additional tax. We pay our Council Tax and I pay 
Road Tax yet they are proposing parking permits, surely this is just a stealth tax to raise more money.
The plan is to build a multi-storey carpark, which I had to use Google Maps to find which I am sure will not be available 
to every person who has been sent this questionnaire.
The plan is that whilst the carpark is being built there will be a loss of 150 parking spaces in the Common Car Park but 
the plan is also  “To provided a temporary deck on Lemsford Road car park, to create around 100 spaces”. This gives a 
net loss of only 50 parking space.
The council propose painting yellow lines and applying parking permits from the Conservative Club going East, I 
assume that it will be elsewhere and that we have only been sent the maps that apply to us. These measures are overkill 
for just 50 spaces and confirms my feeling that this is a stealth tax and if it does cover additional areas it still affects us.
Two options are given. (The Blue sections are taken from the Consultation Letter):
1.      A single yellow line prevents any vehicle from parking for the days and times it operates, including residents and 
visitors. The introduction of a single yellow line restriction in some locations may fail to solve the problem, and could 
make matters worse. I think that is an understatement and they answer their own proposal with a resounding NO.
2.      Many roads have little or no off road parking provision and in many areas we ARE RECOMMENDING A 
Resident permit parking scheme. This is the only way the environment can be managed and still allow parking for both 
residents and their visitors within the zone. They state their case early using the environment as the reason. They have 
been a popular choice and many such schemes are now in operation throughout the borough. Those poor souls have 
already lost the fight and are not experiencing a parking tax, fines and more inconvenience than they had before and I 
doubt they think the schemes are popular at all. All money received from resident permit parking schemes is used solely 
to fund their design, maintenance and enforcement. If these people cannot make money from parking they should be 
sacked.

The letter says there is a table to indicate our support and on which days of the week and times we would prefer for 

Appendix A

Page 42



f

these options. Obviously this is a foregone conclusion and we are all going to suffer not just for the time it takes for the 
500 space multi-storey carpark is built but forever.
They enclosed details plans of just our area and mention double yellow lines but do not give real details, the law on 
parking within 15 metres of a junction exists and is very clear.
It goes on to mention complaints about parking on verges, blocking the footpath and instead of looking at why this 
occurs and maybe modify things it talks of yet more restrictions.
It does say that officers will carryout thorough investigations to see if there are any suitable areas which could be 
converted into more parking space. If I were issuing this public consultation document I would ensure that I had all the 
details, it seems that Ka Ng has not done this which gives me no confidence especially when I read the letter sent out.

The bottom line is that parking is tight where we live and in this area there are 18 sheltered homes and most have 
mobility problems allied to a limited income. To add further financial pain to us and anyone who visits, including health 
visitors shows a complete lack of compassion by Ka Ng and the council. Undoubtedly there will be more permits issued 
than parking spaces based on the assumption that not everyone will want to park at the same time, this will introduce 
conflicts.  We have a sign that says “Residents Parking” to add yellow lines would cause extreme stress for us and 
visitors that are so precious to us all. If you look at the maps provided who is going to visit the shops and park as fare 
away as the Citroen Garage on the A1000 it is not logical?

The proposed fees:

First permit £25 per year

Second permit £40 per year

Third or subsequent permits £60 per year

Motor cycle £10 per year, most bikes take up a car space

Business permit £225 per year

Doctor/Health Visitor £20 per year

As I said an additional cost is already too much on our very limited income and magine the conflict with three or more 
permits out there! As for the permits for Doctors and Health Visitors that is just disgusting.

We shall tick the box that says “Do nothing, keep things as they are” because that is the fairest way forward. Let the 500 
space multi-storey carpark entice people once it has been build and let shoppers deal with the temporary 50 space 
reduction which is bugger all in the great scheme of things.

If you require copies of the consultation pack let me know and I will take them to your Hatfield office for copying.

Appendix A

Page 43



Appendix A

Page 44



Appendix A

Page 45



Appendix A

Page 46



Appendix A

Page 47



Appendix A

Page 48



Appendix A

Page 49



Appendix A

Page 50



 Subject: French Horn Lane Area Parking consultation

 WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or 
clicking links. 
 . 

 Dear Sirs,

 I have read the consolation documentation and I feel quite outraged to object. My reasons are below:

 1) I have lived in Howe Dell for 10 years, and there has never been a major parking issue at this moment in time, so 
why create a problem now?
 2) If the scheme were to go ahead, this will force cars to find alternative places to park. This will create a bigger 
problem for other other residents. This will create congestion elsewhere. Having a permit zone, does not guarantee a 
parking place near residents homes.
 3) People will have to walk further to their cars, to off-load their shopping, or risk a parking ticket
 4) Visitors who may see their clients in Howe Dell, may not be aware to the scheme and they may be penalised for 
attending whilst repairing properties. For example, my fence may get blown down and I’m away on business, how can I 
get the visiter parking permit to him, when, I don’t know his reg or he changes it and then he fixes the fence and gets a 
fine. This will enrage using friends. This is like big brother has arrived. It is over the top, and heavy handed.
 5) Alternatives have not been mentioned.. What about improving the existing parking, by providing more spaces, where 
it is needed.
 6) What happens at weekends and holidays.. are the rules different?
 7) If there is a local problem, surely the resident would complain, say there is a noisy neighbour - a neighbour would 
complain, the council would contact the noisy one, and the problem will go away. Why can’t the same apply to car 
parking in How Dell?
 8) Non resident parking is not a big issue in Howe Dell.
 9) The elderly will be scared to have visitors, as they will feel it would be their fault, if the friends are given parking 
tickets. Friends and family may have had to travel from afar- what a welcome a parking ticket will be! Are we allowed 
friends to visit us any more- if so how many are we allowed! What happens if we need more visiter permits?
 10) The parking permit scheme will deter visitors from visiting Hatfiield. I feel I am being prevented from having my 
friends and family visiting me. Sometimes, a friend may stay in my place, when I’m away and say they bring their 
friend over who drives another car. How can this be administered?
 11) Supposing I decided to renovate my house. I will have builders in, plumbers, glaziers , decorators and their work-
mates- all needing passes. and every day different. I would consider going away whilst all these guys are attending. 
How can the parking permit be managed? It can’t!
 12) Do we get a discount on the Council Tax for paying for something we are already paying for. It’s all about raising 
money for the council.
 13) How much revenue is this expected to raise for the council. The whole exercise is a waste of time and is not needed 
at this time, because, it is not a problem.

 Hope to hear from you,

 Regards,

Appendix A

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE AREA, 

HATFIELD) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING, PARKING PLACES AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) 
ORDER 2019 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) in order to improve road safety 
proposes to make the above Orders under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce 
restrictions in various roads, Hatfield as specified in the Schedule(s) to this Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Orders, the plans and the statement of 
reasons which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council, The Campus,Welwyn Garden City or viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk from 
20th March 2019. 
 
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Martin Donohoe, Parking 
Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE, tel: 01707 357000  email: 
parking@welhat.gov.uk 
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE by 11th April 2019, stating the grounds on 
which they are made.  
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any 
personal data you provide in responding to this Notice will be treated as confidential but will 
be shared with WHBC Officers; Borough Councillors and contracted third parties who are 
involved in the statutory process. We will not share identifiable data with third parties outside 
of the statutory process. Guidance on your rights in respect of personal data are published in 
the Privacy Policy on our website www.welhat.gov.uk 
 
SCHEDULE 1: No waiting at any time - those sections of road(s) listed below as set 
out in the Order and accompanying plans  
Parts of Brain Close, Breaks Road, French Horn Lane, Glebeland, Goldings Crescent, 
Howe Dell, Link Close, Link Drive, Oaklands Wood, Old Rectory Drive, Onslow Close, St 
Etheldredas Drive, Wood Close and Wood Vale 
 
SCHEDULE 2: Parking Monday to Friday 8am to 6pm permits holders for zones B02 
and B15 or 2 hours no return within 2 hours, those sections of road(s) listed below as 
set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
Parts of French Horn Lane, Link Drive and Old Rectory Drive 
 
SCHEDULE 3: Permit Parking Places, Zone B 02, Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm, those 
sections of road(s) listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
Parts of Brain Close, Glebeland, Howe Dell, Old Rectory Drive, Onslow Close and St 
Etheldredas Drive 
 
SCHEDULE 4: Permit Parking Places, Zone B 15, Monday to Friday, 8am to 6pm, those 
sections of roads listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans 
Parts of Breaks Road, French Horn Lane, Goldings Crescent, Oaklands Wood, Wood Close, 
Wood Vale 
 
 
 Appendix B

Page 53



SCHEDULE 5: Parking Zones 
 
Parking Zone 
Name 

PZ 
Code 

Eligible addresses 

Brain Close B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,28, 30,32, (Glebe Court 3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15, 
16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34, 
35,36,37,38,39) 

Glebeland B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38 

Howe Dell B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43, 
44,45,46,47,48,49,50,51,52,53,54,55,56,57,58,59,60 

Old Rectory 
Drive 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24 
25,26,28,30,32,34,36,38,40,42,44,46,48,50,52,54,56,58,60, 
62,64,66,68 

Onslow Close B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,27 

Rectory 
Gardens 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10 

St Etheldredas 
Drive 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43,44, 
45,46,47,48,49,50,51,52,53,54,55 

Breaks Road B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,16,18,20,22,24,26 
French Horn 
Lane 

B 15 1,3,5,7,9,11,13,15,17 (17 Flat 1, Flat 2, Flat 3),19,21,23, 25, 
27,29,31,33,35,37,39,41,43,45,47, Lord William Cecil Memorial 
Hall 

Goldings 
Crescent 

B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,41,43,45, 
47, 49,51 

Link Close B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 
Link Drive B 15 1,3,5,7, Breaks Manor 
Link Walk B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 

24,25,26,27,28,30,32,34,36,38 
Oaklands 
Wood 

B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43,44, 
45,46 

Wood Close B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,38,40,42,44,46,48,50, 
52,54,56,58,60,62,64,66,68,70,72,74,76,36A,36B 

Wood Vale B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,23,25, 
27,29,31 

 
SCHEDULE 6: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Permit Type Limit 
Resident Permit No limit 
Resident Permit for 
motorcycle 

No limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration 
numbers 

Visitor Voucher Books of 20 Daily Vouchers only 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 
Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion Appendix B

Page 54



 
 
SCHEDULE 7: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers* 
 

Application Type Charges 
Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free 
Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 
Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 
Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 
Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 
Business permit £225 per annum 
Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents 

receiving state pension sold in whole books 
of Daily Vouchers only. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 per annum 
Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 
Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 whole books only 

 
SCHEDULE 8: Refunds* 

Permit Type Refund 
Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 
Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

 
*The charges may be amended by the Local Authority giving notice in accordance with 
section 46A of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  
 
Ka Ng, Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
20th March 2019. 

Appendix B
Page 55



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR PROPOSING 
 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE AREA, 
HATFIELD) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING, PARKNG PLACES AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) 

ORDER 2019 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is proposing to introduce resident permit parking zones and waiting 
restrictions in various roads in the French Horn Lane area of Hatfield. 
 
Residents in the roads listed were consulted during 2018 on proposed restrictions to prevent existing 
problems and to prepare for parking displacement caused by the planned redevelopment of the Hatfield 
town centre. Residents expressed concerns about local worker and commuter parking causing 
congestion. Also noted were locations where cars parked too close to the junctions. 
 

 
The proposed restrictions are as follows: 

 
Double yellow lines (no waiting at any time) affecting 
 Parts of Brain Close, Breaks Road, French Horn Lane, Glebland, Goldings 

Crescent, Howe Dell, Link Close, Link Drive, Oaklands Wood, Old Rectory 
Drive, Onslow Close, St Etheldredas Drive, Wood Close, Wood Vale 

 
Shared use parking bays parking bays, Parking Monday to Friday 8am-6pm permits holders 

for zones B02 and B15 or 2 hours no return within 2 hours for visitors, affecting 
 Parts of French Horn Lane, Link Drive and Old Rectory Drive 
 

Permit parking Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm permit holders only for Zones B02 affecting 
 Parts of  Brain Close, Glebeland, Howe Dell, Old Rectory Drive, Onslow 

Close and St Etheldredas Drive 
 

Permit parking Monday to Saturday, 8am to 6pm permit holders only for Zones B15 affecting 
 Parts of Breaks Road, French Horn Lane, Goldings Crescent, 

Oaklands Wood, Wood Close, Wood Vale 
 
Having considered the duty imposed by Section 122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council consider that it is necessary and expedient to make Orders for the following reasons:- 
 

 For the purposes of relieving or preventing congestion of traffic. 
 For the avoidance of danger to persons or other traffic using the 

road and preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 
 
The proposal has been subject to consultation with local and county councillors representing the area 
and Hertfordshire County Council. The local Police, Ambulance, Fire and Rescue Services, Officers from 
Hertfordshire County Council, local residents and businesses have also been consulted. 
 
Ka Ng 
Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
Wednesday 20th March 2019 Appendix B

Page 56



Appendix B
Page 57



Appendix B
Page 58



1  

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ROAD TRAFFIC REGULATION ACT 1984 
 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE 
AREA, HATFIELD) (RESTRICTION OF WAITING, PARKING PLACES AND PERMIT 

PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2019 
 

The Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to 
arrangements made with Hertfordshire County Council (“the County Council”) under Section 
19 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 
Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 in exercise of the powers conferred on 
the said County Council by Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 32, 35, 45, 46, 47, 49 and 53 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 (“the Act of 1984”) and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Act of 1984 and of all 
other enabling powers and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with 
Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act of 1984 hereby makes the following Order:- 

 
Commencement 

 

1) (a) This Order shall come into operation on XXXXXXXXXXX and may be cited as The 
Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, French Horn Lane Area, Hatfield) 
(Restriction of Waiting, Parking Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2019 
hereinafter referred to as “this Order”. 

 
(b) The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, French Horn Lane Area, Hatfield) 
(Restriction of Waiting, Parking Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order Plans 2019 – 
FHL01 and FHL02 (hereinafter referred to as the “accompanying plans”) are 
incorporated into this order. 

 
Interpretation 

 

2) In this Order :- 
 

“accompanying plans” means the plans FHL01 and FHL02 as incorporated into The 
Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, French Horn Lane Area, Hatfield) 
(Restriction of Waiting, Parking Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order 2019; 

 
“Business Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with Article 11 of this order; 

 
"Disabled Person" means a disabled person of a description prescribed by regulation 4 
of the Disabled Persons (Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000 SI 
682; 

 
“Disabled Person’s Badge” has the same meaning as in the Disabled Persons 
(Badges for Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2000 SI 682; 

 
"Disabled Person's Vehicle" means a vehicle lawfully displaying a disabled person's 
badge and which is a vehicle which, immediately before or after any period of waiting 
allowed by virtue of a provision of a kind required by regulation 8 of the Local 
Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England) Regulations 
2000 SI 683, has been or is to be driven by a disabled person or, as the case may be, 
has been or is to be used for carrying disabled persons as passengers; 

 
“Civil Enforcement Officer” is a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic Appendix B

Page 59



2  

Management Act 2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council; 
 

“Doctors/Health Visitor Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with the Article 
12 of this Order; 

 
"Driver" means the person driving the vehicle at the time it was left in the parking 
place; 

 
“Eligible Address” means any postal address which is listed in Schedule 1 to this 
Order and therefore indicates that the resident or entitled business user may apply 
for a Parking Permit and/or Parking Vouchers; 

 
“Entitled Business User” means a person who occupies premises the postal address of 
which is an eligible address as listed in Schedule 1 and which has no off-street parking 
space provided or authorised by any planning consent related to the premises and who 
is liable for payment of business rates on that premises; 

 
“Household” means a dwelling with a separate entry on the Council’s Council Tax 
register; 

 
“Motor Vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 136(1) of the Act of 1984; 

 
"Motor Cycle" has the same meaning as in Section 185(1) of the Road Traffic Act 
1988; 

 
"Owner” has the meaning assigned to it by s 82. (2) and (3) of the Road Traffic Act 
1991; 

 
“Paperless parking permit” means a parking permit issued electronically by the 
service provider; 

 
“Paperless parking voucher” means a parking voucher issued electronically by the 
service provider; 

 
“Parking Permit” means a Resident Permit, Business Permit, Contractor Permit, 
Doctor/Health Visitor Permit or Special Permit issued by the Council under the 
provisions of this order; or its paperless equivalent; 

 
“Parking Place” means any area on a highway designated as a parking place by this 
order; 

 
"Parking Voucher" means a Visitor Voucher or issued by the Council under the 
provisions of this order and bearing printed instructions for its validation on the front 
face; or its paperless equivalent; 

 
“Parking Zone” or “PZ” refers to all the Parking Places in a specified area indicated by 
name or alphanumeric code which are to be used only by vehicles displaying a valid 
Parking Permit or Parking Voucher for that specified area during the permitted hours 
of operation and which are shown in the labels and key to the accompanying plans 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Order; 

 
“Pensioner” means any resident who is in receipt of a state pension; 
"Permit Holder" means a person to whom a Parking Permit and/or a Parking Voucher 
has been issued; 

 Appendix B
Page 60



3  

“Permitted Hours” means a period specified for each parking place during which the 
waiting by vehicles of a specific class is permitted as shown in the labels and key to the 
accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order; 

 
"Relevant Position" means on the dashboard or fascia of the vehicle or where the 
vehicle is not fitted with a dashboard or fascia in a conspicuous position on the 
nearside of the vehicle, or if the vehicle is one being used by a disabled person has the 
same meaning as given in Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders 
(Exemptions for Disabled Persons) (England) Regulations 2000; 

 
"Resident" means a person whose usual place of abode is an eligible address listed in 
Schedule1 to this Order; 

 
“Resident Permit” means a permit issued to a resident in accordance with Article 9 of 
this order; 

 
“Service Provider” is a service administering parking transactions, records of permits 
and vouchers and records of paperless permits and paperless parking vouchers; 

 
“Special Permit” means a permit issued in accordance with Article 13 of this order; 

 
“Universal service provider”, “provision of a universal postal Service” and “postal packet” 
shall bear the same meanings as in the Postal Services Act 2011; 

 
“Vehicle” means motor vehicle or motor cycle; 

 

Restriction of Waiting and Limited Waiting 
 

3)  
a) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (a) of this Order, no person shall, except 

upon the direction of or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform or with 
permission of a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic Management Act 
2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, cause or permit any 
vehicle to wait at any time on any part of a road where waiting is prohibited as shown 
in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this 
Order. 
 

b) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (b) of this Order, no person shall, except 
upon the direction of or with the permission of a Police Constable in uniform or with 
permission of a Civil Enforcement Officer as defined by the Traffic Management Act 
2004 and appointed by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, cause or permit any 
vehicle to wait on any restricted road in respect of which there is specified as shown 
in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this 
Order a period during the restricted hours in which waiting is allowed, 
 

i) for a period longer than specified on the On-Street Plans; or . 
ii) if a period less than that specified on the Plans as being the period in which the 

vehicle shall not return has elapsed since a previous period of waiting by the 
same vehicle on the same length of road. 
 

c) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39 and 40(b) of this Order where a Vehicle is parked in a 
Parking Bay within a Parking Place as shown on the On-Street Plans and identified and 
defined in the Key to the On-Street Plans the driver of that Vehicle shall not permit the 
Vehicle to wait in that Parking Bay unless it is parked wholly within the marked lines of 
that Parking Bay. Appendix B

Page 61



4  

 

 

Designation of Permit and Voucher Parking Places and Parking Bays 
4) Subject to the provisions of this Order, Permit Parking Places may be used for the 

leaving during the permitted hours of vehicles of the following class, that is to say, 
passenger vehicles (the overall height of which does not exceed 2.3 metres and the 
overall length of which does not exceed 5.25 metres), goods carrying vehicles (the 
overall height of which does not exceed 2.3 metres and the overall length of which 
does not exceed 5.25 metres), motorcycles and disabled persons vehicles (on which 
must be displayed the relevant parking disc) that display a valid Permit or Voucher in 
the relevant position). 

 
5) Each area on a highway comprising the length of carriageway of a street as shown in 

the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order 
which unless otherwise so specified, is bounded on one side of that length by the edge 
of the carriageway and having a width throughout of at least 1.8 metres, as long as no 
obstruction of access is caused to any properties along the carriageway, is hereby 
designated as a parking place. 

 
 

6) Save as provided in Articles 38, 39, and 40 (b) of this Order no motor vehicle may be 
parked in a parking place as shown in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans 
as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order during the permitted hours without a valid 
Parking Permit, or valid Parking Voucher being displayed in the relevant position. 

 
7) The absence of a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher, or a record of a paperless 

Parking Permit or paperless Parking Voucher, for a motor vehicle left in a parking 
place shall be evidence of the fact that a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher has not 
been purchased by the driver of the vehicle. 

 
8) Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers to be displayed on vehicles left in a parking place 

at all times; 
 

a) when a vehicle is left in a parking place during the permitted hours, the driver thereof 
shall cause to be displayed in the relevant position a valid paper Parking Permit 
issued in respect of that vehicle or a valid Parking Voucher so that all the particulars 
referred to in Article 19 are readily visible from the front of the vehicle; or  
 

b) shall have purchased either a paperless Parking Permit or paperless Parking Voucher. 
 

Eligibility for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 
 

9) Any resident who is the owner of a motor vehicle or has access to a company vehicle 
or hired vehicle may apply to the Council for the issue of a Resident Permit for each 
such vehicle in their ownership or control, subject to the maximum Parking Permit 
allocation per household set out in Schedule 3 to this Order. 

 
10) Any resident may apply to the Council for the issue of Visitor Vouchers, up to the 

maximum annual allocation per household of the number of days specified in Schedule 
3 to this Order. 

 
11) Any entitled business user may apply to the Council for the issue of one Business 

Permit in respect of no more than two vehicles required for the operation of the Appendix B
Page 62



5  

business. 
 

12) Any agency, professional practice or organisation which manages local doctors, 
midwives, district nurses, health visitors and various other essential domiciliary medical 
or caring personnel may apply for the issue of a Doctor/Health Visitor Permit for the 
use of these personnel when visiting households in the roads specified in Schedule 1 
to this Order. Where possible, such permits will be issued to a particular vehicle. The 
decision to issue a Doctor/Health Visitor Permit and whether it will be issued to a 
vehicle, to an individual or to an agency, professional practice or organisation will be at 
the discretion of the Council. 

 
13) Any person (or any person acting on behalf of a resident) may at any time apply to the 

Council for the issue of a Special Permit in respect of a vehicle identifying the user of 
the vehicle. The decision to issue a special parking permit is at the discretion of the 
Council. Without prejudice to the generality of the Council discretion the following 
circumstances may be relevant to an application: 

 
a) the applicant’s exceptional medical needs; 
b) the applicant’s exceptional social needs; 
c) any exceptional difficulty experienced by a carer for any resident. 

 
 

Application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 
 

14) Application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers shall be made on a form either 
on paper, or electronically provided by the Council. The form must be completed and 
returned accompanied by a payment for the charge set by the Council, specified in 
Schedule 4 of this Order and by such documentary evidence of entitlement in respect 
of an application for a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers made to them as the 
Council may reasonably request to verify any particulars or information given to them. 

 
15) On receipt of a properly completed application and fee where appropriate the Council 

shall issue to the appropriate applicant a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers provided 
that the applicant qualifies for the Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 

 
16) a) Where a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers are issued to any person upon receipt 

of a cheque or credit/debit card details and the payment is subsequently 
dishonoured, the Parking Permit or Parking Voucher shall immediately cease to be 
valid. 

 
b) The Council will serve notice by recorded delivery on the person to whom the 

Parking Permit or Parking Voucher was issued at the address shown by the 
applicant on the application form or at any other address believed to be the 
applicant’s place of abode, requiring that person to surrender the Parking Permit or 
Parking Voucher, to the Council within 48 hours of the receipt of the notice. 

 
Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 

 

17) The charges for a Parking Permit and Parking Vouchers shall be as specified in 
Schedule 4 to this Order. 

 
18) The charges for a Parking Permit and Parking Vouchers may be amended by the 

Local Authority giving notice in accordance with section 46A of the Act of 1984. 
 Appendix B

Page 63



6  

Form of Parking Permit and Parking Voucher 
 
19) A Parking Permit shall include the following particulars 

a)  
i) a serial number by which the Permit Holder may be identified; 
ii) the registration number(s) of the vehicle(s) for which the parking permit is issued; 
iii) the expiry date; 
iv) an alphanumeric code to identify the Parking Zone; 
v) a paper permit shall include an authentication that the Parking Permit has been 

issued by the Council 
 

b) A Parking Voucher shall include the following particulars: 
i) A serial number by which the Permit Holder may be identified; 
ii) the day, date, month and year of commencement; 
iii) an alphanumeric code to identify the Parking Zone; 
iv) a paper parking voucher, shall include an authentication that the Parking Voucher 

has been issued by the Council 
 

Surrender, Withdrawal and Validity of a Parking Permit or Parking Voucher 
 

20) A Permit Holder may surrender a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers to the Council at 
any time. 

 
21) The Council may by notice served by recorded delivery on the Permit Holder at the 

address shown by that person on the application form or at any other address believed 
to be that person's place of abode, withdraw a Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers, if it 
appears to the Council that:- 

a) the Permit Holder has ceased to be eligible to hold a Parking Permit or Parking 
Vouchers under the provisions of Articles 9 to 13 of this order; 

b) the vehicle or motorcycle in respect of which a Parking Permit was issued has been 
adapted or used in such a manner that it is no longer a vehicle for which a Parking 
Permit can be issued; 

c) the details on a paper Parking Permit or paper Parking Vouchers as described in 
Article 19 of this Order have been deliberately altered. 

 
22) A paper Parking Permit will be valid only if displayed on the vehicle or motorcycle to 

which the Parking Permit relates in the relevant position. 
 

23) A paper Parking Voucher will be valid only if displayed on a vehicle or a motor cycle in 
the relevant position and correctly marked in accordance with the instructions for 
validation on the front face. 

 
24) A Parking Permit shall cease to be valid at midnight on the specified expiry date or on 

the date the Council withdraws the Parking Permit by notice, whichever is the earlier. 
 

25) The Council will not make any refund for the withdrawal of a Parking Permit or Parking 
Vouchers. 

 
26) The Council will refund part of the cost of a Parking Permit which has been 

surrendered, if not less than one month remains before the expiry date, the amount of 
refund to be as specified in Schedule 5 to this Order and subject to an administration 
charge as specified in Schedule 4 to this Order. 

 
27) The Council will refund the cost of whole books of both parking vouchers which are 

surrendered before their expiry date subject to an administration charge as specified in Appendix B
Page 64



7  

Schedule 4 to this Order. 
 
Application for and the issue of a Duplicate Parking Permit or Parking Vouchers 

 

28) The Council will issue a duplicate or replacement Parking Permit or Parking vouchers 
in the following circumstances: 

a) If a paper Parking Permit is mutilated or accidentally defaced or the figures or 
particulars on it have become illegible or the colour of the Parking Permit has faded 
or altered, the Permit Holder shall surrender it to the Council. If the Parking Permit is 
accompanied by an application for a replacement Parking Permit, a duplicate Parking 
Permit shall be issued and the original Parking Permit shall become invalid. 

b) If a paper Parking Permit is lost or destroyed, the Permit Holder may apply to the 
Council for the issue of a duplicate. If the Council is satisfied as to the loss or 
destruction of the Parking Permit, a duplicate will be issued. 

c) If a Permit Holder acquires a new vehicle or motorcycle, the Permit Holder shall 
surrender the original paper Parking Permit to the Council and make an application 
for a new Parking Permit and the original Parking Permit shall become invalid. 

d) If paper Parking Vouchers are lost or destroyed, the Permit Holder may apply to the 
Council for the issue of duplicates. If the Council is satisfied as to the loss or 
destruction of the Parking Vouchers, duplicates will be issued, on receipt of a new 
application and the appropriate fee specified in by the Council in Schedule 4. This 
article applies to whole books of Parking Vouchers only. 

e) The Council will make an administration charge for the issue of a duplicate Parking 
Permit or duplicate Parking Vouchers as set out in Schedule 4 to this order. 

 
Restriction on the removal of a Residents Parking Permit 

 

29) Where a paper Parking Permit or paper Parking Voucher, has been displayed on or 
attached to a motor vehicle in accordance with the provisions of Article 6 of this Order, 
no person other than the driver of the motor vehicle or a Civil Enforcement Officer shall 
remove the Parking Permit or Parking Voucher from the motor vehicle unless 
authorised to do so by the driver of the motor vehicle. 

 
Power to suspend use of Parking Places 

 

30) Any person authorised by the Council may suspend the use of a parking place 
whenever he considers such suspension reasonably necessary; 

a) for the purpose of facilitating the movement of traffic or promoting its safety; or 
b) for the purpose of any building operation, demolition or excavation in or adjacent to 

the parking place or the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of the parking 
place or the laying, erection, alteration, removal or repair in or adjacent to the parking 
place of any sewer or of any main, pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or 
electricity or of any telecommunication apparatus or traffic sign; or 

c) for the convenience of occupiers of premises adjacent to the parking place on any 
occasion for the removal of furniture from one office or dwelling house to another 
place; or 

d) on any occasion on which it is likely by reason of some special attraction that any 
street will be thronged or obstructed; or 

e) for the convenience of occupiers of premises adjacent to the parking place at times 
of weddings or funerals or on other special occasions; or 

f) for the purpose of facilitating the cleansing of the parking place. 
 
 

Manner of standing in a parking place Appendix B
Page 65



8  

 

31) Every vehicle left in a parking place in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this 
Order shall so stand: 

 
a) In case of a parking place in relation to which special provisions as to the manner 

of standing of a vehicle in that parking place are specified in the accompanying 
plans of this Order, as to be in accordance with those provisions; 

 
b) In the case of any other parking place:- 

 
i) if the parking place is not in a one-way street, that the left or near-side of 

the vehicle is parallel to the left-hand edge of the carriageway; 
 
ii) That the distance between the edge of the carriageway and the nearest 

wheel of the vehicle is not more than 50 centimetres; 
 

c) In the case of a vehicle left in a parking place as specified in the accompanying 
plans of this Order that every part of the vehicle is parked wholly within the limits 
of a parking place. 

 
 

Restriction on the use of a parking place 
 

32) During the permitted hours no person shall use any parking place or any vehicle while 
it is in a parking place in connection with the sale or offering or exposing for sale of any 
goods to any person in or near the parking place or in connection with the selling or 
offering for sale of his skill in handicraft or his services in any other capacity. Provided 
that nothing in this Article shall prevent the sale of goods from a vehicle if the vehicle is 
a passenger vehicle, a goods carrying vehicle, a motor cycle or an invalid carriage and 
the goods are immediately delivered at or taken into premises adjacent to the vehicle 
from which the sale is effected. 

 
Alteration of position of a vehicle in a parking place 

 

33) Where any vehicle is standing in a parking bay in contravention of the provisions of 
Article 31, a Police Constable in uniform or a Civil Enforcement Officer may cause to 
be altered the position of the vehicle in order that its position shall comply with those 
provisions. 

 
Movement of a vehicle in a parking place in an emergency 

 

34) A Police Constable in uniform or a Civil Enforcement Officer may cause to be moved, in 
case of an emergency, to any place he thinks fit any vehicle left in a parking place. 

 
Restrictions on the removal of Penalty Charge Notices 

 

35) a) Where a Penalty Charge Notice has been attached to a vehicle no person other 
than the driver of the vehicle, a Civil Enforcement Officer or a Police Constable in 
uniform shall remove the permit or ticket from the vehicle unless authorised to do 
so by the driver of the vehicle. 

 
b) Provided that nothing herein shall apply to a Civil Enforcement Officer or a Police 

Constable in uniform or a person removing the vehicle in pursuance of an 
arrangement made by a Police Constable or a Civil Enforcement Officer by or under 
regulations in pursuance of powers contained in Sections 99, 100, 101 and 102 of Appendix B

Page 66



9  

the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 
 
Installation of and placing of traffic signs, etc 

 

36) The Council shall:- 
 

a) Place and maintain traffic signs indicating the limits of each parking place; and 
place and maintain in or in the vicinity of each parking place as shown in the labels 
and key to the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 of this Order, traffic 
signs indicating that such parking places may be used during the permitted hours 
for the leaving of the vehicles specified in Article 4; and 

 
b) Carry out such other work as is reasonably required for the purposes of the 

satisfactory operation of a parking place. 
 

Penalty Charges 
 

37) a) Where a person contravenes the prohibitions and requirements set out in the 
provisions of this Order, the owner of the vehicle in question shall incur a penalty 
charge 

 
b) The penalty charge shall be payable to the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council in 

accordance with the instructions contained on the penalty charge notice. 
 

Exemptions to the provisions of this Order 
 

38) It shall not contravene Articles 3 (a), 3 (b), 3 (c) and Article 6 of this Order to cause or 
permit any vehicle to wait in the parts of the road referred to therein for so long as may be 
reasonably necessary to enable:- 

a) goods to be loaded on or unloaded from the vehicle 
b) a person to board or alight from the vehicle; 
c) the vehicle, if it cannot conveniently be used for such purpose in any other 

road, to be used in connection with any of the following operations, namely:- 
i) building, industrial or demolition operations; 
ii) the removal of any obstructions to traffic; 
iii) the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of the said roads; 
iv) the laying, erection, alteration, repair or cleaning of any sewer or of 

any main pipe or apparatus for the supply of gas, water or electricity, 
or of any telecommunications apparatus kept or installed for the 
purposes of a telecommunications code system or of any other 
telecommunications apparatus lawfully kept installed in any position. 

d) the vehicle if it cannot conveniently be used for such purpose in any other 
road to be used in the service of a local authority or water authority in 
pursuance of statutory powers or duties. 

e) the vehicle to be used for fire brigade, ambulance or police purposes; 
f) the vehicle to be used by a universal service provider in the course of the 

provision of a universal postal service for the purpose of delivering or 
collecting postal packets. 

g) a motor vehicle whilst being used by a Civil Enforcement Officer in the course 
of the enforcement of parking restrictions, is stationary only for so long as may 
be reasonably necessary for them to issue (or attempt to issue) a Penalty 
Charge Notice to a vehicle they believe to be parked in contravention of those 
restrictions or adjacent restrictions. 

 Appendix B
Page 67



10  

 
39) It shall not contravene Articles 3 (a), 3 (b), 3 (c) and 6 of this Order to cause or 

permit a vehicle to wait in the part of the road referred to therein if the vehicle is 
prevented from proceeding by circumstances beyond the driver’s control or if the 
driver of the vehicle has stopped in order to avoid injury or damage to persons or 
property or is required to do so by law. 

 
40) a) Nothing in Article 3 (a) of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or permit a 

disabled person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled person’s 
badge and a parking disc, to park or wait at any time in the lengths of road where 
waiting is prohibited as shown in the labels and Key to the accompanying plans as 
specified in Schedule 2 to this Order for a period not exceeding 3 hours (not being a 
period separated by an interval of less than 1 hour from a previous period of waiting 
by the same vehicle in the same length of road). 

 
b) Nothing in Articles 3(b), 3(c) or 6 of this Order shall render it unlawful to cause or 

permit a disabled person’s vehicle which displays in the relevant position a disabled 
person’s badge and a parking disc, to park or wait during permitted hours in a parking 
place as shown in the accompanying plans as specified in Schedule 2 to this Order 
and indicated in the labels and key to those plans as parking places. 

 
41) The prohibitions and restrictions imposed by this Order shall be in addition to and not 

in derogation of any restriction or requirement imposed by any regulations made or 
having effect as if made under the Act of 1984 or by or under any other enactment. 

 
42) The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it applies 

for the interpretation of an act of parliament. 
 

43) The provisions of the following Order(s) are hereby revoked but only in so far as they are 
affected by the restrictions imposed by this Order – 

 

The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield (Control of Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017 
 
  

Appendix B
Page 68



11  

SCHEDULE 1: Parking Zones 
 
 

Parking Zone 
Name 

PZ 
Code 

Eligible addresses 

Brain Close B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,28, 30,32, (Glebe Court 3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15, 
16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34, 
35,36,37,38,39) 

Glebeland B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38 

Howe Dell B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43, 
44,45,46,47,48,49,50,51,52,53,54,55,56,57,58,59,60 

Old Rectory 
Drive 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24 
25,26,28,30,32,34,36,38,40,42,44,46,48,50,52,54,56,58,60, 
62,64,66,68 

Onslow Close B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,27 

Rectory 
Gardens 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10 

St Etheldredas 
Drive 

B 02 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43,44, 
45,46,47,48,49,50,51,52,53,54,55 

Breaks Road B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,16,18,20,22,24,26 
French Horn 
Lane 

B 15 1,3,5,7,9,11,13,15,17 (17 Flat 1, Flat 2, Flat 3),19,21,23, 25, 
27,29,31,33,35,37,39,41,43,45,47, Lord William Cecil Memorial 
Hall 

Goldings 
Crescent 

B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,41,43,45, 
47, 49,51 

Link Close B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8 
Link Drive B 15 1,3,5,7, Breaks Manor 
Link Walk B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 

24,25,26,27,28,30,32,34,36,38 
Oaklands 
Wood 

B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24, 
25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,37,38,39,40,41,42,43,44, 
45,46 

Wood Close B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,22,23, 
24,25,26,27,28,29,30,31,32,33,34,35,36,38,40,42,44,46,48,50, 
52,54,56,58,60,62,64,66,68,70,72,74,76,36A,36B 

Wood Vale B 15 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16,17,18,19,20,21,23,25, 
27,29,31 

 
  

Appendix B
Page 69



12  

 
SHEDULE 2:The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield   

(Various Roads, French Horn Lane Area, Hatfield)  
 (Restriction of Waiting, Parking Places and Permit Parking Zones) Order Plans 2019 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 3: Allocation of Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Permit Type Limit 
Resident Permit No limit 
Resident Permit for 
motorcycle 

No limit 

Business Permit 1 permit with a maximum of 2 vehicle registration 
numbers 

Visitor Voucher Books of 20 Daily Vouchers only 
Maximum purchase 240 days per year. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 
Special Permit Allocated at Council’s discretion 

 
 

SCHEDULE 4: Charges for Parking Permits and Parking Vouchers 
 

Application Type Charges 
Resident Permit for disabled driver First permit Free 
Resident Permit for motorcycle £10 per annum 
Resident Permit for first car £25 per annum 
Resident Permit for second car £40 per annum 
Resident permit for third or subsequent cars £60 per annum 
Business permit £225 per annum 
Visitor Voucher 50p per day or 25p per day to residents 

receiving state pension sold in whole books 
of Daily Vouchers only. 

Doctors/Health Visitor Permit £20 per annum 
Special Permit Charged at council’s discretion 

Administration Type Charges 
Refund Parking Permit and Vouchers £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Permit £5 
Duplicate/replacement Parking Voucher £5 whole books only 

 
 
 
  

Plan number  FHL01 
Plan number  FHL02 

Appendix B
Page 70



13  

SCHEDULE 5: Refunds 
 

Permit Type Refund 
Resident permit for motorcycle Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for first car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for second car Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Resident permit for third or 
subsequent cars 

Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

Business permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Visitor Voucher Cost of whole books only 
Doctors/Health Visitor Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 
Special Permit Pro rata to the nearest month on amounts above £5 

 
 
 

GIVEN under the Common Seal of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council this 
XXth day of XXXX 2019 
 
         THE COMMON SEAL of the WELWYN ) 
         HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL was  ) 
         Hereunto affixed in the presence of:-     ) 
 
 
 
 
         Mayor 
 
 
 
 
         Authorised Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix B
Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES' TRAFFIC ORDERS (PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND AND WALES) 
REGULATIONS 1996 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE AREA, HATFIELD) 

(RESTRICTION OF WAITING, PARKING PLACES AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2019 

NOTICE is given that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, as a consequence of responses received to the 

Notice of Intention published on 20 March 2019, proposing to make a Traffic Regulation Order in various 

roads Hatfield under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, propose under provisions of Regulation 14 of The 

Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 to modify the above 

named Order(s). 

The effect of the modifications highlighted in the plan will be as follows: 

 To restrict parking in front of garages located in access roads in Brain Close, Howe Dell 
and Onslow close and Wood Close by means of a No waiting at any time restriction 
(Double Yellow Lines).  
 

 To restrict parking under the footbridge in Link Drive with a No waiting at any time 
restriction (Double yellow lines) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Should you wish to make any representations regarding the proposed modifications please write to: Martin 
Donohoe, Parking Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE, tel: 01707 357000 email: 
parking@welhat.gov.uk , representations concerning the proposed modifications should be submitted, so as to 
be received by the Authority within 14 days of the date of this Notice. 
 
Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any personal data you 
provide in responding to this Notice will be treated as confidential but will be shared with WHBC Officers; 
Borough Councillors and contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. We will not share 
identifiable data with third parties outside of the statutory process. Guidance on your rights in respect of 
personal data are published in the Privacy Policy on our website www.welhat.gov.uk 

 
Ka Ng, Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
16 April 2019. 

Page 73



Appendix C
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES' TRAFFIC ORDERS (PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND AND WALES) 
REGULATIONS 1996 

 
THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE AREA, HATFIELD) 

(RESTRICTION OF WAITING, PARKING PLACES AND PERMIT PARKING ZONES) ORDER 2019 

NOTICE is given that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, as a consequence of responses 

received to the Notice of Intention published on 20 March 2019, proposing to make a Traffic 

Regulation Order in various roads Hatfield under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, propose 

under provisions of Regulation 14 of The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 1996 to modify the above named Order(s). 

The effect of the modification highlighted in the plan will be as follows: 

 To change the proposed restriction outside Glebe Court from “permit parking only” to parking 
bays restricted to “2 hours no return within 2 hours or permit parking zone B02” 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Should you wish to make any representations regarding the proposed modifications please write to: 

Martin Donohoe, Parking Services, Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE, tel: 01707 
357000 email: parking@welhat.gov.uk  

Representations concerning the proposed modifications should be submitted, so as to be received 
by the Authority within 14 days of the date of this Notice. 
 

Consulting on this scheme is a statutory duty of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. Any personal data 
you provide in responding to this Notice will be treated as confidential but will be shared with WHBC 
Officers; Borough Councillors and contracted third parties who are involved in the statutory process. 
We will not share identifiable data with third parties outside of the statutory process. Guidance on your 
rights in respect of personal data are published in the Privacy Policy on our website 
www.welhat.gov.uk 
 

Ka Ng, Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services, 
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
13th May 2019. 

Page 74


	Agenda
	8 PARKING SERVICES WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE
	8a - Appendix A

	9 INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS IN VARIOUS ROADS, HANDSIDE WARD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY
	9a - Stanborough - Appendix A - CPPP - 6.6.19
	9b -  Stanborough - Appendix B - updated
	9c - Stanborough - Appendix C - CPPP - 6.6.19
	9c1 - Stanborough Close - updated
	9c2 - Lemsford Lane V2 - updated

	10 INTRODUCTION OF WAITING RESTRICTIONS, RESIDENT PERMIT PARKING SCHEME IN VARIOUS ROADS, FRENCH HORN LANE, EAST AND SOUTH WEST WARDS, HATFIELD
	10a - Appendix A
	10b - Appendix B
	FHLA 1-2 NOI
	FHLA 1-2 SOR
	French Horn Lane Area  drawing 1
	French Horn Lane Area  drawing 2
	Draft RPPS TRO FHLA 20-3-19

	10c - Appendix C
	Area 1 and 2 modifications notice 16-4-9
	Area 1 modification no2 notice 13-5-9





